
 
 

Scrutiny Streets & Environment Sub-Committee 
 
 

Meeting held on Tuesday, 2 April 2024 at 6.30 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Katharine 
Street, Croydon CR0 1NX 

 
MINUTES 

 
Present: 
 

Councillors Councillor Ria Patel (Chair), Councillor Louis Carserides (Vice 
Chair), Gayle Gander, Stella Nabukeera and Ellily Ponnuthurai 

  
Also  
Present: 

Councillor Scott Roche (Cabinet Member for Streets and Environment)   
 
 

Apologies: Councillor Danielle Denton 
  

PART A 
  

9/24   
 

Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2024 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
  
  

10/24   
 

Disclosure of Interests 
 
 
There were none. 
  

11/24   
 

Urgent Business (if any) 
 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
  

12/24   
 

Period 9 Financial Performance Report 
 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out on pages 23 to 62 of the 
agenda that provided the Cabinet Report on Period 9 Financial Performance 
for Members to ascertain whether they are reassured about the delivery of the 
2022-23 Sustainable Communities, Regeneration & Economic Recovery 
(SCRER) Budget. The Corporate Director of SCRER introduced the item. 
  
The Chair asked about the forecasted £0.6m income pressure resulting from 
the New Roads and Street Works Act (NRSWA). The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that pressure on this income target was due to fewer coring 
inspections in 2023/24. The Sub-Committee heard that the income target 



 

 
 

would continue to be monitored to ascertain whether it may need to be 
revised. 
  
The Chair asked about a £0.5m pressure in Parking Services due to 
connection and configuration issues with the newly installed Automatic 
Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) cameras. The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that it was not uncommon to have ANPR shortfalls as a 
result of camera vandalism and regular maintenance faults, and that these 
issues were not at a higher level than was normal. It was highlighted that 
opposition to the Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ) had resulted in some 
vandalism to the Council’s ANPR camera network. Members heard that 
parking income was reflecting the anticipated income targets but it was 
acknowledged that there had been some behavioural change accelerated by 
the pandemic, such as greater levels of residents working from home and 
different shopping habits. 
  
The Chair queried the forecast underspend of £1.7m in staffing owing to 
periods of vacancy and the £1.2m forecast underspend in waste services 
owing to reduced tonnage level of waste. The Corporate Director of SCRER 
explained that household waste tonnage had reduced since the pandemic due 
to a number of residents returning to office based work. Members were 
informed that a number of posts had been difficult to fill, particularly 
programme and project managers in the Regeneration team, but that a 
recruitment campaign would be commencing shortly. The Council’s 
successful bid to the Levelling Up Fund, in conjunction with Growth Zone 
Funding, meant that Croydon now had a good amount of funding to spend; it 
was thought that this would make working in regeneration in Croydon a more 
attractive prospect. 
  
The Chair asked about income underachievement of £0.6m in the Planning 
and Sustainable Regeneration Division, owing to lower activity levels in 
planning major applications and planning performance agreements. The 
Corporate Director of SCRER acknowledged that this was a challenge and 
that there had been a reduction in major applications and pre-applications. 
The Sub-Committee heard that this was a trend that was being seen London 
and nationwide, due to economic and regulatory factors. The Corporate 
Director of SCRER explained that there was still significant income being 
generated but that it was less than the income target; this target would 
continue to be reviewed during 2024/25 to see whether it needed to be 
revised during the next budget setting process. Members asked if the Council 
would still be able to meet its housing targets and heard that Croydon was 
continuing to monitor this, but was currently meeting its targets and Five Year 
Supply. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked what the Council was doing to attract development 
to Croydon. The Corporate Director of SCRER explained that the Council had 
a Planning Transformation plan in place to deliver on the recommendations 
made by the Planning Advisory Service review in 2022. Members heard that 
performance in the Planning department was strong against national 
indicators, and that the Council was engaging through its Developer’s Forum 



 

 
 

and Resident’s Associations; there were also continuing efforts to digitalise 
planning services, where possible, to increase accessibility and efficiency. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked about the Capitalisation Direction of £9.439m for 
2019-20 required to make a payment to a former contractor in relation to a 
historic claim relating to a contract held during the period 2011-18. The 
Corporate Director of SCRER explained that an independent Adjudication 
Panel had decided to award monies arising from a dispute from a former 
highways maintenance contract. Members heard that the Council would 
continue to see if any money could be recovered through arbitration. 
  
The Chair asked about the Planning Skills Delivery Fund bid and was 
informed that £180,000 had been secured through two bids; these were to 
support clearing the backlog and the digitalisation of services. The Sub-
Committee heard that significant progress had already been made in clearing 
the backlog to a manageable caseload level for planning officers. 
 
  

13/24   
 

Cabinet Report: Proposed Parking Charge Amendments 2024-25 
 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out on pages 63 to 102 of the 
agenda, which provided the proposed Parking Charge Amendments for 2024-
25, considered at Cabinet on the 27 March 2024. The Cabinet Member for 
Streets & Environment introduced the item followed by a short presentation 
from the Head of Highways & Parking Services. 
  
Members asked how the Council would determine the success of the 
proposed tariffs and how their environmental impact would be measured. The 
Head of Highways & Parking Services explained that the Council would 
continue to incentivise residents to adopt less polluting vehicles through a 
parking discount, but that business footfall and vitality had also been a focus 
in developing the proposals in order to align with the Mayor’s Business Plan. 
The Sub-Committee heard that the proposals sought to achieve Medium Term 
Financial Strategy savings (2024-28 SAV SCRER 002) and that this would be 
used to determine the success of the new tariffs. The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that the Council was seeking a balance between 
environmental incentives and encouraging economic activity in the borough 
and explained that the current 90% discount for Electric Vehicles (EVs) was 
high when compared to other boroughs. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked how this policy would connect with other strategic 
transport polices, and what the Council would be doing to encourage the use 
of less polluting methods of transport, beyond the use of EVs. The Corporate 
Director of SCRER explained that the Council’s Strategic Transport approach 
and Local Implementation Plan worked together to encourage the use of 
public transport, active transport and walking. Members heard that national 
trends showed new vehicles purchased were increasingly EVs or Hybrid and 
that the Council needed to look at how to support this through infrastructure, 
particularly where residents did not have their own driveways or access to a 



 

 
 

personal EV charger. The Council had been providing on street EV charging 
points and this approach was being reviewed, following the departure of the 
former officer overseeing this work and a new officer starting in post. The 
Corporate Director of SCRER explained that the Council’s role in delivering 
EV infrastructure needed to be reviewed as the market grew, with the 
continued rollout of charging points at supermarkets and petrol stations. The 
Cabinet Member for Streets & Environment added that the second meeting of 
Croydon Advisory Forum on Active, Sustainable and Accessible Transport 
was scheduled for later in April 2024, and that this was another way for the 
Council to engage with key stakeholders on strategic transport in the borough. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked what number of current permits were for higher 
polluting vehicles. The Head of Highways & Parking Services responded that, 
for 2022/23, of 8,779 parking and residential permits 264 of these were for 
higher polluting vehicles, and that almost 80% of the total were for the middle 
band. 
  
The Chair praised the emissions-based charging approach and asked why the 
size and weight of vehicles had not also been considered. The Corporate 
Director of SCRER explained that this would be a complicated process and it 
was not known if the Council’s payment contractor would hold this 
information; the importance of having a simple system that could be easily 
understood by residents was also highlighted. Members were informed that 
EVs were heavier than other vehicles and could lead to greater road wear, 
damage, and resulting maintenance costs. 
  
Members asked what evidence base the Council had used for choosing the 
proposed charges, and what comparisons had been made with similar 
boroughs parking schemes. The Head of Highways & Parking Services 
explained that the Council had reviewed its existing emissions data from 
previous cashless transactions, UK average emissions benchmarking and 
tariff benchmarking (London wide for permits and neighbouring boroughs for 
kerbside parking). The Sub-Committee heard that of Croydon’s neighbouring 
boroughs, only one other offered a free parking period for district centres, and 
this was only for 30 minutes. Members heard that the Council had made the 
decision not to increase Band 5 as it sat at the top-end when compared to 
other London boroughs; for Bands 2-4 Croydon Council was around the 
London median; and for EVs the proposed charge had been increased as the 
current discount was significant.  The Vice Chair asked how many residents 
would be affected by the changes in Bands 1 – 4 parking permit charges and 
heard that this would affect around 6500 residents (as of 2023 data). 
  
Members asked how often charges and the Parking Policy would be reviewed 
and how residents and businesses would be engaged. The Corporate Director 
of SCRER explained that there had been a great deal of engagement with 
businesses on the new Parking Policy during the consultation and during the 
cashless parking trials, and that this engagement would continue. The Sub-
Committee heard that the proposed charges needed to go through the Traffic 
Regulation Order consultation process before implementation, and then the 
impact could be measured. Once the Council had sufficient data, it would be 



 

 
 

able to review the charges; Members heard that this would take 15 months at 
a minimum. The Sub-Committee noted that this was the first time that parking 
tariffs had been reviewed since 2019. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked whether one-hour free parking for district centres 
was the correct length of time. The Head of Highways & Parking Services 
explained that one-hour free parking time had been decided in collaboration 
with local businesses and was intended to give residents enough time to visit 
several shops; residents would also have the option to pay to extend parking 
time if needed (which was not currently possible). Business footfall would be 
measured by transaction data (a baseline for this would be established before 
the new tariffs were introduced) and the Council was looking to work with 
RingGo to utilise new technology to monitor turnover at kerbside bays. 
  
The Vice Chair asked if consideration had been given to a scale of permit 
charges for households with multiple cars. The Head of Highways & Parking 
Services responded that residents could purchase up to three permits and 
that there was already an excess fee for households purchasing multiple 
permits, with no increase was currently proposed. 
  
Members asked about Civil Enforcement Officers (CEOs), and heard that 
recent recruitment had been successful in bringing the team up to 40 full time 
employees. The RingGo new technology trial would help to determine current 
compliance levels and would allow for better-tailored enforcement. The Sub-
Committee heard that the trial would also look at parking on single yellow 
lines, highway and loading bay blocking, and parking on forecourts. The Chair 
asked about fluctuating numbers of CEOs and retention and heard that this 
was due to the challenging nature of the work. The Chair asked about 
targeted data-led enforcement, which had been discussed at the Sub-
Committee in July 2023. The Head of Highways & Parking Services explained 
that discussions with RingGo on how this data could be collected to create 
hotspot maps for officers was ongoing, but that PowerBI would likely be used 
as part of the implementation. 
  
The Chair asked if a Workplace Parking Levy (WPL) had been considered. 
The Corporate Director for SCRER stated that generally the Council looked to 
employers to develop parking policies for their own staff. The Cabinet Member 
for Streets & Environment added that there were cycle to work and electric car 
initiatives available to businesses. The Director of Streets & Environment 
explained that the Council would be looking at WPLs but noted that other 
boroughs had adopted WPLs with little success. 
  
The Chair asked how any surplus income from the proposed charges would 
be spent. The Head of Highways & Parking Services responded that the 
Council would prioritise any surplus on road safety initiatives due to a 
reduction in funding sources for these kind of schemes over recent years. 
  
The Vice Chair asked if social tenants would receive any discount on parking 
permits. The Head of Highways & Parking Services responded that this had 



 

 
 

not been defined in the Parking Policy, but that this was something that would 
be reviewed at a later date. 
  
Conclusions 
  

1. The Sub-Committee welcomed that the proposed parking tariffs would 
continue to use an emission based charging scheme. 

  
2. The Sub-Committee were encouraged that the Council would be 

looking at the possible adoption of Workplace Parking Levies (WPL) 
and asked to be kept informed of this work as it developed. 

  
Recommendations 
  

1. The Sub-Committee recommended that the Council undertake further 
work to understand the impact of increased residential parking permit 
prices for social tenants and the feasibility of providing a discount to 
these residents in the final scheme. 

  
2. The Sub-Committee recommended that the Council develop specific 

Key Performance Indicators to monitor the footfall impact of the 
proposed charges on businesses in district centres. 

 
  

14/24   
 

Air Quality Action Plan 2024-29 
 
 
The Sub-Committee considered a report set out in the supplementary agenda, 
which provided the latest draft of the Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 2024-29. 
The Cabinet Member for Streets & Environment introduced the item followed 
by a presentation from the Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards 
& Licensing. 
  
The Vice Chair asked about the designation of Croydon as an Air Quality 
Management Area and heard that this would be the fifth Action Plan since the 
designation in 2002.  The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing explained that the AQAPs were having a positive effect, but 
acknowledged that there were still measures that could be adopted to further 
improve air quality. Members asked if the resources to deliver the AQAP had 
been quantified and heard that funding would come from existing budgets 
(such as the Pollution Team’s); Planning Section 106 Obligations; Local 
Implementation Plan; Mayors’ Air Quality Fund (MAQS); Department for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) air quality grant, and Public 
Health funding. Lower cost measures around communication campaigns and 
synergy with the Council’s other initiatives, such as active travel, would also 
contribute to delivering the AQAP. 
  
The Vice-Chair asked about the sources and proportion of PM2.5 small 
particle emissions and whether the actions in the plan had been quantified in 
terms of cost and effectiveness. The Director of Streets & Environment 



 

 
 

explained that a Steering Group would be implemented to monitor the delivery 
and effectiveness of the Plan, and that PM2.5 emissions came primarily from 
diesel and burning but it was not possible to determine the specific locality 
these came from or their proportions. Members asked if the AQAP had been 
discussed with DEFRA and if they would be providing any additional funding. 
The Director of Streets & Environment replied that there had been 
conversations with and bids submitted to DEFRA, however, the bids had not 
been successful. The Vice Chair commented that they were concerned that 
local authorities did not have sufficient resources to deliver ambitious air 
quality improvement and that the aims of the Plan were too ‘top line’. The 
Corporate Director of SCRER explained that the Council had not yet made 
any bids on the basis of this AQAP, as it had not yet been adopted, and that 
Air Quality funding for London primarily came through the MAQS, and that this 
may have contributed to the lack of success with DEFRA bids. The Sub-
Committee heard that the aim of the AQAP was to provide a framework and 
objectives to be used as a reference when bidding for funding and working 
with other departments, boroughs and sectors to achieve air quality 
improvements. 
  
The Chair asked what learning had been taken forward from the Council’s 
previous AQAPs. The Corporate Director of SCRER explained that this was a 
shorter and more targeted AQAP to ensure that it was achievable and 
deliverable whilst being easily understood by all stakeholders and partners. 
The Chair asked who would sit on the Steering Group and heard from the 
Director of Streets and Environment that the AQAP Steering Group would be 
chaired by the Director of Streets & Environment and be constituted of the 
Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & Licensing, Pollution 
Team Manager, representatives from SEND Transport, Public Health, 
Planning, Strategic Transport, Housing, and the Carbon Neutral Program 
Manager; it was highlighted that those who could help to achieve the 
objectives of the AQAP would have places on the Steering Group. The 
Director of Streets & Environment explained that the Steering Group would 
delegate actions to the responsible departments and monitor progress against 
these actions at its quarterly meetings. 
  
Members asked if the Council had found that School Streets schemes had led 
to measurable air quality improvements. The Head of Environmental Health, 
Trading Standards & Licensing informed Members that a Local Government 
Association (LGA) study in 2021 had shown significant reduction in Nitrogen 
Dioxide emissions from similar schemes, and that these had parental support. 
The Director of Streets & Environment explained that this data had been 
collected through on-site monitors, but was yet to be analysed. The Sub-
Committee asked if this monitoring would look at the impact of the schemes 
on the air quality of neighbouring roads. The Director of Streets & 
Environment explained that the initial School Street schemes had been 
adopted at pace and the Council was looking at increased traffic on boundary 
roads and the kind of complimentary measures that would help to improve the 
implementation of future schemes. 
  



 

 
 

The Sub-Committee asked about health inequalities as they related to air 
pollution in Croydon. The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing explained that Croydon was similar to other London boroughs but 
that residents living near major highways were disproportionately affected by 
air pollution. The Director of Streets & Environment stated that the public 
transport network in Croydon was not as developed as inner-London 
boroughs, and that this was a contributing factor to increased road transport 
and resulting emissions. Members heard that there were ongoing efforts 
through discussions with Transport for London (TfL) to improve and expand 
the public transport offer in Croydon. 
  
The Chair asked about plans for additional monitoring sensors and heard that 
these were coming forward through different schemes, such as Healthy 
Neighbourhoods and School Streets, and that the AQAP Steering Group 
would help to better co-ordinate sensor deployment and data gathering. The 
Corporate Director of SCRER explained that Healthy Neighbourhoods and 
School Streets Cabinet Reports contained significant air quality analysis data, 
road collision data and consultation feedback. Members asked about the 
costs of monitoring stations and sensors and heard that fixed stations cost 
between £20,000-£40,000 with lamppost monitors costing around £2,000. The 
Sub-Committee heard that the fixed monitoring stations were continually 
calibrated and maintained for very reliable data, which was not the case for 
the lamppost monitors (although these were useful as a guide), and this 
accounted for the difference in cost. Members heard that the borough had 
four fixed monitoring stations, with procurement to replace the Wellesley Road 
station underway. 
  
The Vice Chair asked if there would be physical monitoring for construction 
sites and the Director of Streets & Environment explained that this would fall 
under Construction Management Plans. A dedicated officer was working in 
this area and was proactively engaging with developers when work began, to 
explain the possible impacts of their development and ensure that the Plans 
were followed. The Pollution Team also had powers to engage with 
developers working outside the terms of a Construction Management Plan, or 
where complaints were received. 
  
The Chair asked how the five ‘Focus Areas’ had been chosen, and heard that 
these had been chosen as the hotspot areas identified between the Council 
and the GLA through air quality monitoring data. The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that following the GLA monitoring steer helped to align 
funding goals around possible additional air quality monitoring in the future. 
The Chair asked how Croydon’s AQAP aligned with other London initiatives 
and heard that the AQAP had been designed to meet the guidance of the 
GLA and accounted for the London Plan. 
  
Members asked how asthma levels in Croydon compared to the rest of 
London and the Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing responded that chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) 
levels were higher in Croydon, due to a larger elderly population. The Sub-



 

 
 

Committee heard that there was not current data to suggest that asthma 
levels in Croydon were higher than the rest of London. 
  
The Chair raised concerns about the lack of timelines currently included in the 
AQAP. The Director of Streets & Environment explained that the AQAP was 
broad to ensure that the Steering Group could engage across the Council and 
with partners to agree deliverables and objective timeframes; Members heard 
that this was also the case at other Local Authorities. The Chair asked how 
the Action Plan would be prioritised, and heard that some actions were 
already funded, and that some could be funded quickly through Section 106 
monies; the Delivery Plan would be developed with this detail and published 
later in 2024. The Corporate Director of SCRER explained that the Council 
had to produce yearly returns to the GLA for the work done under the AQAP 
and that these were publicly available on Love Clean Air. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked about the Councils EV charging point rollout 
strategy and heard that this was currently being developed by the Strategic 
Transport team. The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing stated that Croydon compared favourably with neighbouring 
boroughs and had 358 on street EV charging points. The Director of Streets & 
Environment explained that the Council was currently working on its Fleet 
Strategy and considering the infrastructure and depot changes needed should 
it adopt EVs. The Sub-Committee heard that work on the EV charging point 
strategy and Fleet Strategy would be taking place over the next 18 months 
with discussions taking place across departments. The Corporate Director for 
SCRER highlighted that there needed to be a strategic approach to delivering 
EV charging points, which looked at demand, payment method and grid 
infrastructure to ensure the Council could deliver the charging speeds 
residents wanted where they needed it. 
  
Members asked whether the Council had spoken with Oxfordshire and Milton 
Keynes about their successful EV schemes. The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that they had, as well as other Local Authorities with 
successful schemes. It was highlighted that big companies would shift to 
provide EV infrastructure rapidly should car manufacturers move to EV 
production quickly, and the Council needed to consider what role it had in 
delivering infrastructure to fill gaps left by the private sector. The Sub-
Committee heard that the Council needed to be cautious about installing 
infrastructure that could quickly become obsolete in an area where technology 
was advancing and changing rapidly. 
  
The Chair asked what the Council was doing to encourage residents to move 
away from private vehicle use and increase the use public transport and 
active travel. The Director of Streets & Environment responded that Local 
Implementation Plan addressed this through a number of schemes, and that 
the Council was awaiting the results of a £3 million bid to TfL. Road safety 
education was currently being reviewed and budget identified, with it 
acknowledged that some complaints had recently been received in this area; 
the Sub-Committee heard that this was an area of focus for the Cabinet 
Member for Streets & Environment. 

https://lovecleanair.org/local-air/local-reporting/croydon-2/


 

 
 

  
The Chair asked about school workshops on car idling and heard that these 
had been successful and had been focussed on schools in the areas with 
lower air quality. The Director of Streets & Environment added that children 
being aware of idling often took this knowledge home to parents and into their 
later lives. Members asked what data the Council collected on idling and 
heard that this was difficult to collect for a number of reasons, but that CEOs 
did approach drivers idling to educate and ask them to stop. Members asked 
if the Council would be producing a toolkit that could be handed out to drivers 
idling near schools and the Director of Streets & Environment stated that this 
was being developed with the Council looking at examples from other 
authorities and initiatives from universities. The Cabinet Member for Streets & 
Environment informed Members that there were already anti-idling signs on 
London Road and that they were considering where else these could be 
implemented. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked if there needed to be more education on the 
effects of idling and the Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing agreed that there would be work on this as part of the 
communications element of the AQAP. The Director of Streets & Environment 
explained that a dedicated Communications officer was producing the annual 
campaigns and communication plan associated with the AQAP and that this 
should be completed by the end of May 2025. 
  
The Sub-Committee asked about the effectiveness of previous education 
campaigns on idling. The Head of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & 
Licensing explained that these had been seen to be effective as they had 
correlated with reduced complaints about idling, and Members heard that 
officers also undertook pro-active and responsive idling enforcement. 
Members suggested that officers could encourage residents to use the ‘Love 
Clean Streets’ app for reporting repeated instances of idling. 
  
The Chair asked what the Council would be doing to encourage, promote and 
facilitate behavioural change. The Director of Streets & Environment 
explained that the there was a dedicated Communications officer assigned to 
the AQAP and that the Council would do more to work with other Local 
Authorities and gain insights from their initiatives. Members heard that the 
action plan would outline how behavioural change would be achieved and link 
to other Council initiatives such as the Carbon Neutral Action Plan. The Head 
of Environmental Health, Trading Standards & Licensing informed the Sub-
Committee about the National Clean Air Day in June, when the Council would 
be running an awareness campaign. 
  
Members noted the limited promotion of Croydon’s cycle lanes, through social 
media or street signs, and asked what the Council was doing to promote cycle 
lanes in Croydon. The Director of Streets & Environment stated that the 
Council was considering how best to promote new cycle lanes when they 
were installed. The Sub-Committee were informed that the Council was also 
considering the use of Road Safety officers to deliver pro-active cycling 
campaigns in the future. 



 

 
 

  
The Sub-Committee asked if the Council was considering expanding its 
‘Smoke Control Zones’. The Head of Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards & Licensing explained that there needed to be better education 
around the way wood was being burnt (using wood burners, etc.) to ensure 
emissions were minimised but it was acknowledged that there could be better 
communication of where the Smoke Control Zones were in the borough. The 
Sub-Committee heard that exploring the feasibility of expanding the Zones 
would not require a great deal of resource, other than officer time and the 
production of literature. In response to questions about enforcement in Smoke 
Control Zones, Members heard that chimney smoke could be identified for 
breach by colour and that nuisance complaints from bonfires increased in the 
Spring/Summer period. 
  
The Vice Chair asked about the use of Biodiversity Net Gain and Urban 
Greening to deliver the aims of the AQAP. The Corporate Director of SCRER 
explained that there was scope for this and that it would need to be discussed 
with colleagues in the Planning department about how best to do this. The 
Chair praised the addition of new planters and asked if their maintenance had 
been budgeted for. The Director of Streets & Environment explained that a 
planter policy was being developed, potentially with an annual scheme of 
inspection and mapping, but that highways inspectors were currently 
responsible for monitoring the maintenance of urban planters. The Director of 
Streets & Environment acknowledged that planters had been installed as part 
of other schemes and that these were not being maintained to the desired 
level. The Corporate Director of SCRER agreed and stated that further work 
needed to be done in this area to develop a policy. 
  
The Chair asked if the Council was considering any measures around the 
pollution generated by the Beddington Incinerator. The Corporate Director of 
SCRER explained that this was monitored by the South London Waste 
Partnership Joint Committee and that this was currently chaired by the 
Cabinet Member for Streets & Environment. 
  
Requests for Information 
  

1. The Sub-Committee asked that they be provided with the current levels 
of asthma in Croydon and any available comparative data with other 
London boroughs. 

 
2. The Sub-Committee requested a copy of the anti-idling toolkit that 

would be provided to schools once it had been developed. 
 

3. The Sub-Committee requested information on the number of breaches 
in Smoke Control Zones over the last two years. 

 
4. The Sub-Committee requested to be kept updated with the 

development of the Planter Policy. 
 



 

 
 

5. The Sub-Committee requested that it be kept up to date with the 
development of any strategy or actions resulting from the Air Quality 
Action Plan focussing on behavioural change. 

  
Conclusions 
  

1. The Sub-Committee welcomed the Council’s planned strategic 
approach to develop a forthcoming Electric Vehicle Charging Point 
rollout Strategy and expressed an interest in hearing about this at a 
future meeting. 

  
2. The Sub-Committee were encouraged that the Air Quality Action Plan 

would look at the feasibility of expanding Croydon’s existing ‘Smoke 
Free Zones’. 

  
Recommendations 
  

1. The Sub-Committee recommended that the Council further consider 
the roles that Biodiversity Net Gain and Urban Greening could have as 
part of the Air Quality Action Plan 2024-29. 

  
2. The Sub-Committee recommended that officers work with the Planning 

department to see what conditions around air quality could be 
developed for use with future developments. 

  
3. The Sub-Committee recommended that officers consider what air 

quality initiatives could be embedded in the Local Plan around specific 
construction techniques, which could promote better air quality. 

 
  

15/24   
 

Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Recommendations 
 
 
The Sub-Committee noted report. 
  
On SE.15.23/24, the Cabinet Member for Streets & Environment clarified that 
walkabouts were being prioritised to coincide with the blitz cleans but could 
also be directly requested. The Sub-Committee heard that, in future, Contract 
Monitoring Officers would also be attending these visits. 
 
  

16/24   
 

Scrutiny Work Programme 2023-24 
 
 
The Sub-Committee noted report. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.26 pm 



 

 
 

 
 

Signed:   

Date:   

 


